



Section 700

Recording of Plats and/or Conveyances

No plat of any Subdivision shall be recorded by the ~~County~~ Recorder of Portage County or have any validity until said plat has received approval in the manner prescribed in these Regulations. No conveyance of any parcel by metes and bounds, not previously a lot of record, shall not be recorded by the ~~County~~ Recorder of Portage County unless such Subdivision has been approved in the manner prescribed by these Regulations.

Section 701

Revision of Plat after Approval

No changes, erasures, modifications, or revisions shall be made in any plat of a Subdivision after approval has been given by the Regional Planning Commission, and endorsed in writing on the plat, unless said plat is first resubmitted to the Commission. ~~(Amended June 26, 1984)~~

Section 702

Sale of Land within Subdivisions

No owner or agent of the owner of any land located within a Subdivision shall transfer or sell any land by reference to, exhibition of, or by the use of a plat of the Subdivision before such plat has been approved and recorded in the manner prescribed in these Regulations. The description of such lot or parcel by metes and bounds in the instrument of transfer or other documents used in the process of selling or transferring shall not exempt the transaction from the provisions of these Regulations. (*Ohio Revised Code Section 711.13*)

Section 703

Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Expenses

The Portage County Regional Planning Commission shall establish a schedule of fees, charges and expenses, and a collection procedure for same, and other matters pertaining to these Regulations. The schedule of fees shall be posted in ~~the office of the County Clerk, and~~ the Regional Planning Commission office, and may be altered or amended only by the Planning Commission. Until all applicable fees, charges, and expenses have been paid in full, no action shall be taken on any application or appeal. ~~(Amended June 26, 1984)~~

Section 704

Penalties

The following penalties shall apply to the violations of these Regulations:

- A. Whoever violates any rule or Regulation~~s~~ adopted by the **PORTAGE COUNTY** Board of ~~County~~ Commissioners and/or **THE PORTAGE COUNTY REGIONAL** Planning Commission for the purpose of setting standards and requiring and securing the construction of Improvements within a Subdivision or fails to comply with any order pursuant thereto is creating a public nuisance and the creation thereof may be enjoined and maintenance thereof may be abated by action at suit of the County or any citizen thereof.

Whoever violates these Regulations shall forfeit and pay not less than one hundred (\$100) dollars ~~nor~~ **OR** more than one thousand (\$1,000) dollars. Such sum may be recovered with costs in a civil action brought in the Court of Common Pleas of Portage County. (*Ohio Revised Code Section 711.102*)

- ~~B. A County Recorder who records a plat contrary to the provision of these regulations shall forfeit and pay not less than one hundred (\$100) dollars or more than five hundred (\$500) dollars, to be recovered with costs in a civil action by the Prosecuting Attorney in the name and for the use of the County. (*Ohio Revised Code Section 711.12 repealed 1-30-14*)~~

- B. Whoever, being the owner or agent of the owner of any land within or without a municipal corporation, **WILLFULLY** transfers any lot, parcel or tract of ~~such~~ **LAND FROM OR IN ACCORDANCE WITH A PLAT OF A SUBDIVISION, BEFORE THE** plat has been recorded in the office of the County Recorder, shall forfeit and pay the sum of not less than one hundred (\$100) dollars ~~nor~~ **or** more than five hundred (\$500) dollars for each lot, parcel, or tract of land so sold. The description of such lot, parcel, or tract of land by metes and bounds in the deed or transfer shall not serve to exempt the seller from the forfeiture provided in this section. (*Ohio Revised Code Section 711.13*)

The sale of lots, parcels, or tracts from a plat of a Subdivision on which any and all areas indicated as streets or open grounds are expressly indicated as for the exclusive use of the abutting or other owners in such Subdivision and not as public streets, ways, or grounds shall not serve to exempt the seller from the requirements of these Regulations or from the requirements of these Regulations or from the forfeiture provided in this section. (*Ohio Revised Code Section 711.13*)

- C. Any person who disposes of, offers for sale or lease for a time exceeding five (5) years any lot or any part of a lot in a Subdivision before provisions of these Regulations are complied with shall forfeit and pay the sum of not less than one hundred (\$100) dollars nor more than five hundred (\$500) dollars for each lot or part of a lot so sold, offered for sale or leased, to be recovered with costs in a civil action, in the name of the County Treasurer for the use of the County. (*Ohio Revised Code Section 711.15*)

Section 705

Variances

The following Regulations shall govern the granting of variances:

1. Where the PORTAGE COUNTY Regional Planning Commission finds that undue and extraordinary hardship may result from ~~the~~ strict compliance with these Regulations, ~~due to exceptional topographic or other physical conditions~~ DUE TO UNUSUAL TOPOGRAPHIC OR OTHER EXCEPTIONAL CONDITIONS (SECTION 711.10, OHIO REVISED CODE), ~~IF~~ THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION may vary the Regulations so as to relieve such hardship, provided such relief may be granted without detriment to the public interest ~~and without impairing the intent and purpose of these regulations or the desirable development of the neighborhood and community~~ AND PROVIDED THAT SUCH VARIANCE SHALL NOT HAVE THE EFFECT OF NULLIFYING THE INTENT AND PURPOSE OF THESE REGULATIONS, AN ADOPTED PLAN, OR THE TOWNSHIP ZONING RESOLUTION. ~~Such variations shall not have the effect of nullifying the intent and purpose of these regulations, the comprehensive plan, or the zoning resolution, if such exists. (Amended June 26, 1984)~~

705.1 Variance Criteria

THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION SHALL NOT APPROVE A VARIANCE UNLESS IT MAKES A FINDING BASED UPON THE EVIDENCE PRESENTED TO IT FOR EACH SPECIFIC CASE. THE DECISION OF THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION SHALL BE BASED ON THE FOLLOWING:

- A. THE GRANTING OF THE VARIANCE WILL NOT BE DETRIMENTAL TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, COMFORT, CONVENIENCE OR GENERAL WELFARE NOR INJURIOUS TO OTHER INDIVIDUALS OR PROPERTIES;
- B. THE GRANTING OF THE VARIANCE WILL NOT BE DETRIMENTAL TO THE DESIRABLE DEVELOPMENT OF THE NEIGHBORHOOD AND COMMUNITY AND WILL NOT ADVERSELY AFFECT THE DELIVERY OF GOVERNMENTAL SERVICES.
- C. THE UNUSUAL TOPOGRAPHIC OR OTHER EXCEPTIONAL CONDITIONS UPON WHICH THE REQUEST FOR A VARIANCE IS BASED ARE UNIQUE TO THE PROPERTY FOR WHICH THE VARIANCE IS SOUGHT AND THAT THE VARIANCE GRANTED IS THE MINIMUM VARIANCE NECESSARY TO ALLOW FOR A REASONABLE SUBDIVISION OR USE OF THE LAND.
- D. WITHOUT A VARIANCE, THE PROPERTY OWNER IS DEPRIVED OF REASONABLE USE OF THE PROPERTY.
- E. THAT THE UNUSUAL TOPOGRAPHIC OR OTHER EXCEPTIONAL CONDITIONS DID NOT RESULT FROM ACTIONS OF THE APPLICANT.
- F. WHETHER THE SUBDIVISION REGULATION WAS IN EFFECT AT THE TIME OF PRELIMINARY PLAN APPROVAL.
- G. WHETHER THE SITUATION CAN BE REMEDIED BY MEANS OTHER THAN A VARIANCE FROM THESE REGULATIONS.

705.2 Variance Conditions

2. In granting variances, the Portage County Regional Planning Commission may require such conditions as will, in its ~~judgement~~ JUDGMENT, secure substantially the objective of the standards or requirements so varied or modified. ~~(Amended June 26, 1984)~~

Section 706

Appeals

Any person who believes he has been aggrieved by the Regulations or the action of the PORTAGE County REGIONAL Planning Commission has all the rights of appeal as set forth in Chapter 711 of the *Ohio Revised Code* or any other applicable section of the *Ohio Revised Code*.